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Explanation or reason for introduction of bill/resolution: 

 
 Relating to prohibiting use of a device to observe, record, or photograph wildlife on private 
property with permission; and to provide a penalty. 
 

Minutes:                                                  1-5 

 
Chairman Koppelman:  Opened the hearing on HB  1503. 
 
Rep Damschen:  Introduced the bill.  (Attachment #1) Went over proposed bill and 
amendment. This bill requires permission from and individual to put a game camera on 
private land.  
 
Rep. Vetter:  We are making it a crime to install a camera on someone’s land without 
permission. 
 
Rep. Satrom:  Have there been cases that caused this bill? 
 
Rep. Damschen:  I am not aware of any. 
 
Rep. Vetter:  Does this apply to drones? 
 
Rep. Damschen:  No I don’t think so. 
 
Rep. Magrum:  I am confused about the amendment.   I think or is the proper use. The device 
could just have a Game and Fish Department tab or a name, address and telephone number 
on it.  
 
Chairman K. Koppelman:  What types of devices are being referred to in subsection b? 
 
Rep. Damschen:  We are referring to remote cameras.   
 
Chairman K. Koppelman: The original language of the bill just says permission; do you want 
written now? 
 
Rep. Damschen:  Yes we want written. 
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Rep. Paur:  Why do we have a need for this? 
 
Rep. Damschen:  I am concerned someone could be monitoring you on your private land.  
 
Rep. Magrum:   Would the difference be they are actually putting their property on someone 
else’s land? 
 
Support: 
 
Pete Hanabut: ND Farm Bureau:  Support of the bill. 
 
Julie Ellingson, ND Stockman Association: (Attachment #2) Read testimony. 
 
Rep. Roers Jones:  Is this an issue because the land isn’t posted? 
 
Julie Ellingson:  This is about the placement of camera without permission. We think this is 
necessary because people are taking advantage of private property without permission and 
we do not think it is appropriate to have surveillance cameras on somebody’s property unless 
they had been granted permission. 
 
Chairman K. Koppelman: Under current law  
 
Julie Ellingson:  This would be a separate tier on top 
 
Chairman K. Koppelman: Is this needed for those cases. 
 
Julie Ellingson:  I think it is a necessary extra step. 
 
Levis Rue, Rancher:(Attachment #3) Urge a do pass as amended. 
 
John Bradley, ND Wildlife Federation: (Attachment #4) Read testimony. 
 
Steve Keister, Rancher from Steele, ND:  This is a privacy issue and our property should 
not be  
 
Opposition: 
 
Robert Timian, Chief Game Warden of ND Game & Fish Department. (Attachment #5) 
 
Rep. Roers Jones: The amendment says the device cannot be left if it does not have a 
permanently affixed metal or plastic tag with the registration number issued by Game & Fish 
Department. Do you have such a tag set up to register game tags? Do you have such a tag 
set up for registering game camera’s currently? 
 
Robert Timian: Yes, currently we have such a thing in place for people who are going to put 
something on our wildlife management areas. We don’t have such a thing for private property. 
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Rep. Roers Jones:  Would there be an additional cost to set up something like that? 
 
Robert Timian:  I couldn’t answer the question on costs? 
 
Rep. Rick Becker:  Did you say it was already against the law in statute to leave game 
camera on property? 
 
Robert Timian:  It is an administrative rule and it deals strictly with plots.  Private lands 
entered into the agreement with the department. 
 
Chairman K. Koppelman: What is the penalty? 
 
Robert Timian:  It is $100. 
 
Rep. Jones: How do you administer traps? This is supposed to be the same as that. 
 
Robert Timian:  Traps are required to have a person’s identification on it.  The department 
does issue for trappers and individual distinctive number. 
 
Rep. Magrum:  What are the uses? 
 
Robert Timian:  When we read through the bill and got to the language of installs or uses a 
device for observing.  Discussed the problems with just taking pictures on private property. 
 
Chairman K. Koppelman: Did the bill sponsor talk to you about Game & Fish tags? 
 
Robert Timian:  No he did not talk to me. 
 
Neutral: None 
 
Hearing closed. 
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Explanation or reason for introduction of bill/resolution: 

 
 Relating to prohibiting use of a device to observe, record, or photograph wildlife on private 
property with permission; and to provide a penalty. 
 

Minutes:                                                  Attachment 1 

 
Chairman Koppelman:  Opened the meeting on HB 1503.  The intent of the bill is people 
cannot install game cameras on your property without permission.  Is there anyone who 
wants to work on a clarifying amendment? 
 
Rep. McWilliams: Would it clarify it if you took out the word written you would have 
permission to take a picture of a deer. 
 
Chairman K. Koppelman:  The question that came up in committee; if you look at the 
wording on the bill it says without written permission from the owner or occupant installs or 
uses any device for observing, recording or photographing wildlife.     
 
Rep. McWilliams:  If we took out the word written and you had permission then to photograph 
a deer. 
 
Rep. Vetter:  Page 2, line 2 strike or uses and change that to or so it reads installs any 
device. 
 
Rep. Magrum:  The Game & Fish wanted us to take or uses out so we are not talking about 
photographing anything from the road.  We are talking about installing a device.  
 
Rep. Hanson:  Would taking out that phase elevate the concern if a wildlife photographer is 
present. They were concerned about leaving the camera without the photographer being 
present.  The other concern was what if they have binoculars or other observing devices? 
 
Chairman K. Koppelman: This is designed for something you would leave on the property. 
 
Rep. Roers Jones: (Attachment #1) We are trying to make something that is already illegal 
more illegal.  I agree if we are going to change something and try and pass this we obviously 
need to take or uses the devices.  If we change that they have to go onto the person’s 
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property and they are already trespassing. I have a problem increasing the penalty to a Class 
B misdemeanor I have a concern with too.  This is the same penalty if you look up above it 
is the same as gazing or peeping into a tanning both or sleeping room in a hotel or another 
place where someone would reasonably have an expectation of privacy. If you are out in an 
open area regardless, it is private property so if you go onto that property without permission 
you are trespassing.  What is the expectation of privacy in an outdoor space like that? 
 
Representative Simons: What would happen if we moved this whole thing to the peeping 
tom section of our Century code and just cover it like Rep. Roers Jones said. 
 
Motion Made to amend to strike the words on line 2, page 2, or uses after the term 
wildlife add while the owner of the device is absent by Rep. Jones; Seconded by Rep. 
McWilliams 
 
Discussion: 
 
Chairman K. Koppelman:  This bill aims at making illegal to install a game camera and 
leave. Someone may have permission to hunt, but they shoot a deer they set up a tripod to 
a selfie then they are installing a camera. 
 
Rep. Magrum:  Tripod is not installing. 
 
Chairman K. Koppelman: Install is anything you are not physically holding. 
 
Representative Simons: It is not about trespass; it is about taking pictures of people; not 
knowingly.  
 
Chairman K. Koppelman: This amendment would allow someone to take pictures as long 
as they are holding a camera; but they can’t leave the property. 
 
Rep. Jones:  What we have is people going out on some one’s property looking for big bucks 
and not getting peoples permission.  This is to try and make them get permission and looking 
for game. 
 
Rep. Hanson:  It is the owner of the camera? 
 
Voice vote carried. 
 
Rep. Vetter:  I like it to be a Class b misdemeanor? 
 
Motion Made to amend the bill on line 1 of page 2 a replace with an infraction by Rep. 
Vetter; Seconded by Rep. Rick Becker 
 
Voice vote carried. 
 
Motion Made to amend using 19.1118.01001 by Rep. Roers Jones; Seconded by Rep. 
Hanson 
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Chairman K. Koppelman:  Went over proposed Damschen amendment (attachment 1). 
 
Discussion: 
 
Representative Simons:  I understand putting tags on the cameras from Game & Fish; I 
don’t know if you want them to have that much more power? 
 
Rep. McWilliams:  How is written permission defined?  Does it include an email or text 
message? 
 
Chairman K. Koppelman: I think it would. Anything in writing. 
 
Rep. Rick Becker: So with the amendment, if it passes, if you put a game camera out on 
someone’s property without permission it would be an infraction.  If you don’t have your 
identifying information on it would it will be an infraction? 
 
Rep. Bob Paulson:  If you give someone written permission you don’t necessarily know that 
is their camera; so if you walked up to the camera and you had given Joe permission and it 
is Joe than you are good. 
 
Voice vote carries. 
 
Do Pass as Amended Motion Made by Rep. Magrum; Seconded by Vice Chairman 
Karls 
 
Roll Call Vote:   13   Yes    1    No    0   Absent   Carrier:  Rep. Magrum 
 
Closed. 
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Explanation or reason for introduction of bill/resolution: 

 
A bill relating to prohibiting use of a device to observe, record, or photograph wildlife on 
private property without permission and a permanently affixed identifier; and to provide a 
penalty. 
 

Minutes:                                                 3 Attachments  

 
Chair Unruh: Opened the hearing. All members were present.  
 
Representative Chuck Damschen, District 10 (1:00-2:35) Introduced the bill. This bill 
says that you are guilty of an infraction if you set up a game camera on private property 
without the permission of the property owner or the device is not labeled with a metal tag that 
gives a registration number issued by the Game and Fish Department, or the owners name, 
address and telephone number. With the advance of technology, our privacy is harder to 
protect. This would take away some of the possible invasiveness. 
 
Chair Unruh: There isn’t already something in the law for these types of protections? 
 
Representative Damschen: I am not aware of anything that specifically addresses the 
setting up a game camera without permission. We might assume that, maybe there is 
something, I’m just not aware.  
 
Julie Ellingson, North Dakota Stockman’s Association (3:00-6:25) Testified in favor, 
please see attachment #1.  
 
Mike McEnroe, North Dakota Wildlife Society (6:45-7:25) Testified in favor, please see 
attachment #2. 
 
Levi Rue, Rancher (7:45-11:05) Testified in favor, please see attachment #3. These 
cameras can go from basic to pretty advanced. If you have the data card it can send it right 
to your phone.   
 



Senate Energy and Natural Resources Committee  
HB 1503 
3/15/19 
Page 2  
   

John Bradley, North Dakota Wildlife Federation (11:20-11:35) Testified in favor. We 
agree with everything that has been said. We had some concerns, but those will be 
addressed in the amendments.  
 
Bill Helphrey, North Dakota Bow Hunters Association (11:50) Testified in favor. We’ve 
heard lots of reasons why cameras shouldn’t be put on property without permission, we agree 
with all of them. We think this is bill that should be passed. Nobody should have the right to 
put anything on anybody’s property, without them knowing it.  
 
Pete Hanebutt, North Dakota Farm Bureau (12:30-13:05) Testified in favor. We 
supported this bill in the House, all the reasons have been stated. Think about how someone 
could use a camera like this to pattern you, and know when you would be home or not. These 
cameras aren’t necessary used just for game.  
 
No opposition testimony.  
 
Robert Timian, Chief Game Warden, North Dakota Game and Fish (13:33-16:00) The 
Department is okay with the bill, we have some technical questions with the wording. On 
page 2, line 5-7, where it’s requiring a permanently affixed tag or number, if you choose to 
continue with that, we can do that; however, we feel that when you have written permission 
from the landowner, the second part isn’t necessary, because the landowner can require 
whatever type of identification he would like or not. It’s similar to PLOTS, it’s written 
permission and the landowner can decide if he wants them identified or not, it’s up to him. 
Should you choose to keep that language, I will direct your attention to line 4, the last word 
‘or,’ the question there is, the language itself says an individual is guilty of infraction without 
the written permission of the landowners or occupant of the property, and then it says ‘or the 
following language.’ Does that mean if they have the id on it, they no longer need written 
permission? That would be technical question, you might want to consider that. That is the 
main focus. Persons who are not going to obey the law, aren’t going to have an identification 
on them anyway, so having the second part, if I have my camera on your property illegally, 
I’m not going to have an identification number on it.    
 
Vice-Chair Kreun: Under 12.1-31-14, it’s almost identical: ‘Enters upon another's property 
and surreptitiously installs or uses any device for observing, photographing, recording, 
amplifying, or broadcasting sounds or events from a house or place of dwelling of another.’ 
Are we just adding a couple words; ‘wildlife’ and ‘owner of device’ and ‘absent,’ is that what 
this boils down to? 
 
Robert Timian: I believe the sponsors wanted to make it clear they wanted to identify game 
cameras. 
 
Vice-Chair Kreun: Okay, I guess we need to clarify it. 
 
Chair Unruh: Closed the hearing.   
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Explanation or reason for introduction of bill/resolution: 

 
A bill relating to prohibiting use of a device to observe, record, or photograph wildlife on 
private property without permission and a permanently affixed identifier; and to provide a 
penalty. 
 

Minutes:                                                 No attachments 

 
Chair Unruh: Opened committee work. 
There was consternation last week about the use of the word ‘or’ versus ‘and.’ I think it should 
stay ‘or’ the way it is, but Clare Ness is here to clear it up. 
 
Clare Ness, Legislative Council (1:15) Provided neutral information. Chairman Unruh 
asked me to come and discuss the new subsection we added to section 12.1-31-14 which is 
surreptitious intrusion or interference with privacy. Under the new subsection 3, an individual 
is guilty of an infraction if they leave a camera or recording or observing device on somebody 
else’s property if either of the two conditions in subdivision a) or b) is not met. The reason we 
have the ‘or’ in place there, is because if either of those conditions is not met, then the person 
has committed the infraction. Another way to look at this is the person has to have both 
written permission from the owner or occupant and the device has to have a tag on it in order 
for the person to be in the clear, and not guilty of the infraction. The reason the ‘or’ is there 
is because if either of those conditions is lacking, the person has committed the infraction. 
 
Chair Unruh: I just wanted it to be clear to the committee that the intent of the bill sponsors 
and the supports is reflected in the way the language currently is in the bill.  
I think that was the only issue with HB 1503. 
 
Senator Cook: I move a Do Pass. 
Vice-Chair Kreun: I second. 
 
A roll call vote was taken.  
Motion passes 6-0-0.  
 
Senator Schaible will carry. 
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Chair Unruh: Closed committee work.  
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